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SENATOR TRAYNOR opened the hearing on SB 2178: A BILL FOR AN ACT TO AMEND 

AND REENACT SECTIONS 23-25-10 AND 61-28-08 OF THE NORTH DAKOTA 

CENTURY CODE, RELATING TO AIR AND WATER POLLUTION PENALTIES; AND TO 

PROVIDE A PENALTY. 

FRANCIS SCHWINDT of the ND Department of Health testified in support of the bill. (See 

attached testimony) 

SENATOR TRAYNOR asked if there is a violation, will someone be penalized under the new 

subsection 1 and subsection 2. 

LYLE WITHAM, Assistant Attorney General responded that both civil and criminal penalties 

are unusual. The Attorney General's Office cannot bring both civil and criminal actions at once. 

SENATOR TRAYNOR asked if the state is more stringent or less stringent. 
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LYLE WITHAM replied the state is less stringent. 

SENATOR TRAYNOR asked if federal law doesn't require jail time, then why include this in 

the bill. 

LYLE WITHAM replied it has been included to halt further violations. 

SENA TOR TRAYNOR asked if subsection 2 of section 1 regarding criminal negligence is all 

new. 

LYLE WITHUM stated it is and that the federal law is more stringent. 

SENATOR TRAYNOR closed the hearing and asked if the committee desired to take any action. 

Senator Freborg moved for a DO PASS. Senator Heitkamp seconded the motion. 

ROLL CALL - 6 A YES, 0 NA YES, 0 ABSENT 

FLOOR ASSIGNMENT: SENATOR TRAYNOR 



FISCAL NOTE 

• (Return original and 10 copies) 

Bill/Resolution No.: _S_B_2_1_7....;;..8 _______ _ Amendment to: -------------
Requested by Legislative Council Date of Request: _1-_4_-9_9 _________ _ 

1. Please estimate the fiscal impact (in dollar amounts) of the above measure for state general or special 
funds, counties, cities, and school districts. 

Narrative: 

This bill decreases the penalties for criminal violations of the air and water pollution control laws. It 
also standardizes the language that each penalty is per day of violation as required by EPA for 
delegation of the federal programs to the state. All of our penalties to date have been collected under 
the civil penalty authority. 

Fiscal impact is less than $5,000. 

2. State fiscal effect in dollar amounts: 

1997-99 Biennium 
General Special 

Fund Funds 

A Revenues: 

W Expenditures: 

-0-

< $5,000 

-0-

-0-

1999-2001 Biennium 2001-03 Biennium 
General Special General Special 

Fund Funds Fund Funds 

-0- -0- -0- -0-

< $5,000 -0- < $5,000 -0-

3. What, if any, is the effect of this measure on the appropriation for your agency or department: 

a. For rest of 1997--99 biennium: __ _..;...;;N....:...o....;.n..;;;._e ___________________ _ 

b. For the 1999-2001 biennium: ___ <__.$_;;;.5 ....... ,0c.....;;0_;;.0 _________________ _ 

c. For the 2001-03 biennium: ____ <_.$....;;..5 ....... ,0e,_,;0_,;.0 __________________ _ 

4. County, City, and School District fiscal effect in dollar amounts: 

1997-99 Biennium 
School 

1999-2001 Biennium 
School 

2001-03 Biennium 
School 

Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 

-0- -0- -0-
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
January 15, 1999 1 :20 p.m. 

REPORT OF ST ANDING COMMITTEE 

Module No: SR-09-0705 
Carrier: Traynor 

Insert LC: . Title: . 

SB 2178: Natural Resources Committee (Sen. Traynor, Chairman) recommends DO 
PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2178 was placed on the 
Eleventh order on the calendar. 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 1 SR-09-0705 
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Minutes: 

FRANCIS SCHWINDT, CHIEF OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SECTION/ ND 

DEPT. OF HEALTH. SEE HANDOUT. SCHWINDT states that LYLE WITHUM, with the 

A TIN. GEN. OFFICE is present to answer any questions. 

REP. PORTER asks about section 1, # 2, criminal negligence. Is that a definition or a penalty. 

SCHWINDT replies that it is criminal activity that is accessed through the court. REP. PORTER 

asks ifit is criminal then that person could be assessed a$ 10,000.00 penalty. SCHWINDT 

replies that he would let WITHUM reply. WITHUM replies that there could be a civil and a 

criminal case. WITHUM knows of two cases that have been to court. 

REP. NOTTESTAD asks about the state having practice. WITHUM replies that in all cases that 

the state have had practice that they are satisfied how they are being handled. SCHWINDT 

responds into it further. 
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REP. NELSON asks about exceeding the minimum federal penalties, and about stiffer 

regulations. SCHWINDT replies that there are lists of minimums of responsibilities of the 

program. Enforcement's, types, how many, severity, willful violations and then to determine how 

the court is imposing the penalties. REP. NELSON asks if our maximums are higher. 

SCHWINDT replies that we are higher on the repeat violators. 

REP. LUNDGREN asks why are we lowering the existing state law for our maximum. 

SCHWINDT replies that the department made the decision. REP. LUNDGREN asks if we are 

making our maximum their minimum. SCHWINDT replies not necessarily. REP. LUNDGREN 

asks about the state law stating not more than. SCHWINDT replies that yes it does. WITHUM 

addresses the committee to look at the first page, a maximum of $10, 000. 

REP. SOLBERG asks who is the body that determines the violation. SCHWINDT replies that it 

is the Dept. of Health that determines it. 

Being there was no opposition to the bill REP. GROSZ asked the committee their wishes. 

REP. DEKREY motions for a DO PASS, seconded by REP. DROVDAL. The roll call was taken 

with 13 YES, 0 NO, 2 ABSENT. The bill passes. The CARRIER of the bill on the floor will be 

REP. LUNDGREN. 
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February 26, 1999 11 :59 a.m. 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 

Module No: HR-35-3656 
Carrier: Lundgren 

Insert LC: . Title: . 

SB 2178: Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Grosz, Chairman) recommends DO PASS 
(13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2178 was placed on the 
Fourteenth order on the calendar. 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, {4-5-6) COMM Page No. 1 HR-35-3656 
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TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF SENATE BILL NO. 2178 
BY 

FRANCIS SCHWINDT 
CHIEF OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEAL TH SECTION 

NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
701.328.5150 

The North Dakota Department of Health requested Senate Bill No. 2178 to 

update penalty provisions under North Dakota's air pollution (N.D.C.C. ch . 23-25) and 

water pollution (N.D .C.C. ch. 61-28) laws. These updates are necessary to satisfy 

federal requirements for state assumption and retention of delegated federal programs 

under the Federal Clean Air Act and Water Pollution Control Act. The proposed 

amendments relate only to the penalty sections of North Dakota's air and water 

pollution laws. I will give you a very brief history of these laws, and then give you a 

brief summary of the reasons for the proposed changes and why they are necessary. 

The Federal Clean Air Act is the principal source of statutory authority for 

controlling air pollution. North Dakota's air pollution statutes, rules, and standards 

follow the federal statutes and regulations . Originally enacted in 1963, the Clean Air 

Act was amended in 1970, 1977 and 1990. The 1970 amendments established the 

basic program for controlling air pollution that remains in effect today. 

North Dakota's Air Pollution Control Act (N.D.C.C. ch. 23-25) was originally 

enacted in 1969, with major changes being made to that law in 1975 to allow the state 

to take primacy of federal programs delegated to the states under the 1970 

amendments to the Clean Air Act. Primacy simply means that the state takes authority 

and responsibility for programs under the Clean Air Act, and is given federal funding to 

run those programs, provided the state adopts, through statutes and rules, the 

requirements for implementing and enforcing the program. Attached to my testimony is 

a list of the air programs that the Department of Health has primacy for under the Clean 

Air Act. 

The penalty provisions of North Dakota's air pollution law, N.D.C.C. § 23-25-10, 

were last amended in 1975. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has asked 

the Department to make changes to this law in order for the Department to take primacy 

for the Title V operating permit program, the program that came into existence under 

the 1990 Amendments to the Clean Air Act. These changes will also allow the 

Department to retain primacy under its other air pollution programs as those programs 

• periodically come up for review under the Clean Air Act. Section 23-25-1 O is patterned 



• 

after the penalty provisions in the Clean Air Act at 42 USCA § 7413, a copy of which is 

attached to this testimony. 

The Federal Water Pollution Control Act was first enacted in 1956 and in 1965 

was strengthened to require states to adopt water quality standards for interstate 

waters . In 1972 additional major changes to this Act were enacted by Congress, which 

is now generally called the Clean Water Act. North Dakota first adopted its Water 

Pollution Control Act in 1967 as chapter 61-28 of the North Dakota Century Code. The 

last changes to the penalty provisions of North Dakota's Water Pollution Control Act , 

N.D.C.C. § 61-28-08 were made in 1973. There have been many significant changes 

to the Clean Water Act since then. The EPA has requested the Department to make 

several changes to the penalty provision of North Dakota's water pollution law, 

N.D.C.C. § 61-28-08, in order for the Department to take primacy under§ 307 of the 

Clean Water Act for the National Pretreatment Program. These changes will also allow 

the Department to retain primacy of the other programs the Department has under the 

Clean Water Act as they periodically come up for review. N.D.C.C. § 61-28-08 is 

patterned after the penalty provisions of the Clean Water Act at 33 USCA § 1319, a 

copy of which is attached to this testimony. 

Let me briefly go over the specific proposed changes with you. Section 1 of the 

bill addresses the revisions to the air pollution law and section 2 of the bill addresses 

the revisions to the water pollution law. 

In section 1 of the bill, the following revisions were made: 

Existing subsection 1 has been deleted as it is outdated. The administrative 

hearing process is spelled out in N.D.C.C. ch. 28-32 and the Department handles any 

legal action through an assistant attorney general assigned to the Department. The 

present language also makes it difficult to use the injunctive relief remedy. 

Existing subsection 2 has been rewritten to make it clear the penalty for willful 

violations applies to rules, orders or other applicable requirements as well as the 

chapter, any permit condition or limitation and that the fine is per day per violation. The 

phrase, "in the county jail" has been eliminated as the place of imprisonment to give 

more flexibility to the courts. The penalty amount for the initial violation has been 

reduced from $25,000 to $10,000, the minimum required by federal law. Existing 

subsection 2 is now subsection 1 . 

A new subsection 2 has been added to provide a penalty for violations with 

criminal negligence as requested by EPA. 

Existing subsection 3 has been revised to add "any permit condition, rule, order, 

2 
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limitation , or other applicable requirement implementing this chapter" to be complete . 

The words "per day per violation" were added to satisfy EPA requirements. "In the 

county jail" was also deleted in this subsection . 

Existing subsection 4 was revised to allow the Department to fine persons for 

each violation that occurs on separate days , and to add "rule, order, .. . or other 

applicable requirement" as required by EPA. 

A new subsection 5 was added to provide clear provisions for injunctive relief for 

actual or threatened violations of any permit condition , rule, order, limitation or other 

applicable requirement implementing this chapter. The EPA has asked the Department 

to make clear in its laws that the Department can enjoin threatened violations of the law 

and to clarify our injunctive authority. 

The revisions to the penalty section of the state water pollution law, N.O.C.C. § 

61 -28-08, are the same as for the state air pollution law, except the water pollution law 

did not contain the outdated subsection 1 that is in the air pollution law, and subsection 

5 was amended to provide clear provisions for injunctive relief as requested by EPA. 

Finally, because of the "per day per violation" clarification , which will allow the 

Department to assess the required penalty for each violation that occurs on each day, 

the Department has dropped the penalty provisions down to the minimum cash 

penalties allowed for delegation of primacy under the law for first violations. The 

proposed changes retain North Dakota's more severe penalties for subsequent criminal 

violations, although as you will see by comparing those with the federal criminal 

statutes attached to this testimony, the state criminal penalties are still significantly less 

than the federal criminal penalties. All of our enforcement activities to date have been 

civil penalties but we believe the criminal penalties must be strong to deter willful 

crimes and violations. 

In conclusion, the Department requests that Senate Bill No. 2178 be passed to 

allow the Department to receive final approval and delegation of the Title V Operating 

Permit Program and the National Pretreatment Program and protect previous 

delegations. 

This concludes the Department's testimony in support of Senate Bill No. 2178 

and I will be happy to answer any questions you may have. Assistant Attorney 

General Lyle Witham, the Department's attorney, is here to answer any specific 

questions you may have concerning these changes. 

3 
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WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION 33 § 1319 
FWPCA § 309 

Any records, reports, or information obtained under 
this section ( 1) shall, in the case of effluent data. be 
related to any applicable effluent limitations, toxic, 
pretreatment, or new source performance standards, 
and (2) shall be available to the public, except that 
upon a showing satisfactory to the Administrator by 
any person that records, reports, or information, or 
particular part thereof (other than effluent data), to 
which the Administrator has access under this section, 
if made public would divulge methods or processes 
entitled to protection as trade secrets of such person, 
the Administrator shall consider such record, report, 
or information, or particular portion thereof confiden
tial in accordance with the purposes of section 1905 of 
Title 18. Any authorized representative of the Ad
ministrator (including an authorized contractor acting 
as a representative of the Administrator) who know
ingly or willfully publishes. divulges, discloses, or 
makes known in any manner or to any extent not 
authorized by law any information which is required 
to be considered confidential under this subsection 
shall be fined not more than $1,000 or imprisoned not 
more than l year, or both. Nothing in this subsection 
shall prohibit the Administrator or an authorized rep
resentative of the Administrator (including any autho
rized contractor acting as a representative of the 
Administrator) from disclosing records, reports. or 
information to other officers, employees. or authorized 
representatives of the United States concerned with 
carrying out this chapter or when relevant in any 
proceeding under this chapter. 

(c) Application of State law 
Each State may develop and submit to the Adminis

trator procedures under State law for inspection, mon
itoring, and entry with respect to point sources locat
ed in such State. If the Administrator finds that the 
procedures and the law of any State relating to in
spection, monitoring, and entry are applicable to at 
least the same extent as those required by this sec
tion such State is authorized to apply and enforce its 
p~edures for inspection, monitoring, and entry with 
respect to point sources located in such State (except 
with respect to point sources owned or operated by 
the United States). 

(d) Access by Congress 

HISTORICAL A-i'<'D STATUTORY NOTES 
Legislative History 

For legislative history and purpose of Pub.L. 92--500, see 
1972 U.S.Code Cong. and Adm.News. p. 3668. See, also, 
Pub.L. 95-217. 1977 U.S.Code Cong. and Adm.News. p. 4326. 

For legislative history and purpose of Pub.L. 100-4, see 
1987 U.S.Code Cong. and Adm.News. p. 5. 

§ 1319. Enforcement 

[FWPCA § 309] 

(a) State enforcement; compliance orders 
(1) Whenever. on the basis of any information avail

able to him. the Administrator finds that any person is 
in violation of any condition or limitation which imple
ments section 1311, 1312, 1316, 1317. 1318, 1328, or 
1345 of this title in a permit issued by a State under 
an approved permit program under section 1342 . or 
1344 of this title, he shall proceed under his authonty 
in paragraph (3) of this subsection or he shall notify 
the person in alleged violation and such State of su_ch 
finding. If beyond the thirtieth day after the Admin
istrator's notification the State has not commenced 
appropriate enforcement action, the Administrator 
shall issue an order requiring such person to comply 
with such condition or limitation or shall bring a civil 
action in accordance with subsection (b) of this section. 

(2) Whenever, on the basis of information available 
to him, the Administrator finds that violations of 
permit conditions or limitations as set forth in para
graph (1) of this subsection are so widespread that 
such violations appear to result from a failure of the 
State to enforce such permit conditions or limitations 
effectively, he shall so notify the State. If the Admin
istrator finds such failure extends beyond the thirtieth 
day after such notice. he shall give public notice of 
such finding. During the period beginni,,g with such 
public notice and ending when such State sa~i~fies the 
Administrator that it will enforce such condit10ns and 
limitations (hereafter referred to in this section as the 
period of "federally assumed enforcement"), except 
where an extension has been granted under para
graph (5)(B) of this subsection, the Administrator 
shall enforce any permit condition or limitation with 
respect to any person-

(A) by issuing an order to comply with such 
condition or limitation, or 

(8) by bringing a civil action under subsection 
Notwithstanding any limitation contained in this (b) of this section. 

section or any other provision of law, ail information (3) Whenever on the basis of any information avail-
reported to or otherwise obtained by the Administra- able to him the Administrator finds that any person is 
tor (or any representative of the Administrator) under in violation of section 1311, 1312, 1316, 1317, 1318, 
this chapter shall be made available, upon written 1328 or 1345 of this title, or is in violation of any 
request of any duly authorized committee of Congress, pemrit condition or limitation implementing any of 
to such committee. such sections in a permit issued under section 1342 of 
(June 30, 1948, c. 758. Title Ill, § 308, as added Oct. 18, l972. this title by him or by a State or in a permit issued 
Pub.L. 92--500, § 2, 86 Stat. 858, and amended Dec. 27, 1977, h hail 
Pub.L. 95-217, § 67(c)(l), 91 Stat. 1606; Feb. 4, 1987, Pub.L. under section 1344 ~~ this title by a State, e s . 
100-4, Title m, § 310, Title rv, § 406(dXl), 101 Stat. 41, 73.) 1Ssue an order reqwnng such person to comply with 

901 
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FEDERAL ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS 

such section or requirement, or he shall bring a civil 
action in accordance with subsection (b) of this section. 

(4) A copy of any order issued under this subsec
tion shall be sent immediately by the Administrator to 
the State in which the violation occurs and other 
affected States. In any case in which an order under 
this subsection ( or notice to a violator under para
graph (1) of this subsection) is issued to a corporation. 
a copy of such order (or notice) shall be served on any 
appropriate corporate officers. An order issued under 
this subsection relating to a violation of section 1318 of 
this title shall not take effect until the person to whom 
it is issued has had an opportunity to confer with the 
Administrator concerning the alleged violation. 

( 5 )( A) Any order issued under this subsection shall 
be by personal service, shall state with reasonable 
specificity the nature of the violation, and shall specify 
a time for compliance not to exceed thirty days in the 
case of a violation of an interim compliance schedule 
or operation and maintenance requirement and not to 
exceed a time the Administrator determines to be 
reasonable in the case of a violation of a final deadline. 
taking into account the seriousness of the violation 
and any good faith efforts to comply with applicable 
requirements. 

(B) The Administrator may, if he determines (i) 
that any person who is a violator of, or any person 
who is otherwise not in compliance with, the time 
requirements under this chapter or in any permit 
issued under this chapter, has acted in good faith, and 
has made a commitment (in the form of contracts or 
other securities) of necessarv resources to achieve 
compliance by the earliest po;sible date after July 1, 
1977, but not later than April 1, 1979; (ii) that any 
extension under this provision will not result in the 
imposition of any additional controls on any other 
point or nonpoint source; (iii) that an application for a 
permit under section 1342 of this title was filed for 
such person prior to December 31, 1974; and (iv) that 
the facilities necessary for compliance with such re
quirements are under constnlction, grant an extension 
of the date referred to in section 131l(b)(l)(A) of this 
title to a date which will achieve compliance at the 
earliest time possible but not later than April 1, 1979. 

¼ith such order. Such order shall include a schedule 
of compliance. 

(b) Civil actions 
The Administrator is authorized to commence a civil 

action for appropriate relief, including a permanent or 
temporary injunction, for any violation for which he is 
authorized to issue a compliance order under subsec
tion (a) of this section. Any action under this subsec
tion may be brought in the district court of the United 
States for the district in which the defendant is locat
ed or resides or is doing business, and such court shall 
have jurisdiction to restrain such violation and to 
require compliance. Notice of the commencement of 
such action shall be given immediately to the appro
priate State. 

(c) Criminal penalties 
( 1) Negligent violations 

Any person who--
(A) negligently violates section 1311, 1312, 

1316, 1317, 1318, 1321(b)(3), 1328, or 1345 of this 
title, or any permit condition or limitation imple
menting any of such sections in a permit issued 
under section 1342 of this title by the Administra
tor or by a State, or any requirement imposed in 
a pretreatment program approved under section 
1342(a)(3) or 1342(b)(8) of this title or in a permit 
issued under section 1344 of this title by the 
Secretary of the Army or by a State; or 

( B) negligently introduces into a sewer system 
or into a publicly owned treatment works any 
pollutant or hazardous substance which such per
son knew or reasonably should have known could 
cause personal injury or property damage or, 
other than in compliance with all applicable Fed
eral, State, or local requirements or permits. 
which causes such treatment works to violate any 
effluent limitation or condition in any permit is
sued to the treatment works under section 1342 
of this title by the Administrator or a State; 

shall be punished by a fine of not less than $2,500 
nor more than $25,000 per day of violation, or by 
imprisonment for not more than 1 year, or by both. 
If a conviction of a person is for a violation commit
ted after a first conviction of such person under this 
paragraph, punishment shall be by a fine of not 
more than $50,000 per day of violation, or by impris
onment of not more than 2 years, or by both. 
(2) Knowing violations 

Any person who--
(A) knowingly violates section 1311, 1312, 1316, 

1317, 1318, 1321(b)(3), 1328, or 1345 of this title, 
or any permit condition or limitation implement
ing any of such sections in a permit issued under 
section 1342 of this title by the Administrator or 
by a State, or any requirement imposed in a 

(6) Whenever, on the basis of information available 
to him, the Administrator finds (A) that any person is 
in violation of section 1311(b)(l)(A) or (C) of this title, 
(B) that such person cannot meet the requirements for 
a time extension under section 13ll(i)(2) of this title, 
and (C) that the most expeditious and appropriate 
means of compliance with this chapter by such person 
is to discharge into a publicly owned treatment works, 
then, upon request of such person, the Administrator 
may issue an order requiring such person to comply 
with this chapter at the earliest date practicable, but 
not later than July 1, 1983, by discharging into a 
publicly owned treatment works if such works concur 

C 9()'2 
pretreatment program approved under section 
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1342(a)(3) or 1342(b)(8) of this title or in a permit 
issued under section 1344 of this title by the 
Secretary of the Army or by a State; or 

(8) knowingly introduces into a sewer system 
or into a publicly owned treatment works any 
pollutant or hazardous substance which such per
son knew or reasonably should have known could 
cause personal injury or property damage or. 
other than in compliance with all applicable Fed
eral, State, or local requirements or permits, 
which causes such treatment works to violate anv 
effluent limitation or condition in a permit issued 
to the treatment works under section 1342 of this 
title by the Administrator or a State; 

shall be punished by a fine of not less than $5.000 
nor more than $50,000 per day of violation. or bv 
imprisonment for not more than 3 years, or by both. 
If a conviction of a person is for a violation commit
ted after a first conviction of such person under this 
paragraph, punishment shall be by a fine of not 
more than $100,000 per day of violation, or by 
imprisonment of not more than 6 years, or by both. 
(3) Knowing endangerment 

(A) General rule 

Any person who knowingly violates section 
1311, 1312, 1313, 1316, 1317, 1318, 132l(b)(3), 
1328, or 1345 of this title, or any permit condition 
or limitation implementing any of such sections in 
a permit issued under section 1342 of this title bv 
the Administrator or by a State. or in a permit 
issued under section 1344 of this title by the 
Secretary of the Army or by a State, and who 
knows at that time that he thereby places another 
person in imminent danger of death or serious 
bodily injury, shall. upon conviction, be subject to 
a fine of not more than $250,000 or imprisonment 
of not more than 15 years, or both. A person 
which is an organization shall, upon conviction of 
violating this subparagraph, be subject to a fine 
of not more than $1,000,000. If a conviction of a 
person is for a violation committed after a first 
conviction of such person under this paragraph, 
the maximum punishment shall be doubled with 
respect to both fine and imprisonment. 

(B) Additional provisions 
For the purpose of subparagraph (A) of this 

paragraph-
(i) in determining whether a defendant who 

is an individual knew that his conduct placed 
another person in imminent danger of death or 
serious bodily injury-

(1) the person is responsible only for actu
al awareness or actual belief that he pos
sessed; and 

(II) knowledge possessed by a person oth-
er than the defendant but not by the defen-
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dant himself may not be attributed to the 
defendant; 

except that in proving the defendant's posses
sion of actual knowledge, circumstantial evi
dence may be used, including evidence that the 
defendant took affirmative steps to shield him
self from relevant information; 

( ii) it is an affirmative defense to prosecu
tion that the conduct charged was consented to 
by the person endangered and that the danger 
and conduct charged were reasonably foresee
able hazards of-

(1) an occupation. a business, or a profes
sion: or 

(ll) medical treatment or medical or scien
tific experimentation conducted by profes
sionally approved methods and such other 
person had been made aware of the risks 
involved prior to giving consent: 

and such defense mav be established under this 
subparagraph by a preponderance of the evi
dence; 

(iii) the term "organization" means a legal 
entity, other than a government. established or 
organized for any purpose, and such term in
cludes a corporation, company, association. 
firm, partnership, joint stock company, founda
tion, institution, trust, society, union. or any 
other association of persons; and 

(iv) the term "serious bodily injury" means 
bodily injury which involves a substantial risk 
of death, unconsciousness, extreme physical 
pain, protracted and obvious disfigurement. or 
protracted loss or impairment of the function of 
a bodily member, organ, or mental faculty. 

(4) False statements 
Any person who knowingly makes any false mate

rial statement, representation. or certification in any 
application, record, report, plan, or other document 
filed or required to be maintained under this chap
ter or who knowingly falsifies, tampers with, or 
renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method 
required to be maintained under this chapter, shall 
upon conviction, be punished by a fine of not more 
than $10,000, or by imprisonment for not more than 
2 years. or by both. If a conviction of a person is 
for a violation committed after a first conviction of 
such person under this paragraph, punishment shall 
be by a fine of not more than $20,000 per day of 
violation, or by imprisonment of not more than 4 
years, or by both. 

(5) Treatment of single operational upset 
For purposes of this subsection, a single opera

tional upset which leads to simultaneous violations 
of more than one pollutant parameter shall be treat-
ed as a singl~violation. 
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( 6 ) Responsible corporate officer as "person" 

For the purpose of this subsection, the term 
"person" means, in addition to the definition con
tained in section 1362(5) of this title, any responsi
ble corporate officer. 

( 7) Hazardous substance defined 
For the purpose of this subsection, the term 

"hazardous substance" means (A) any substance 
designated pursuant to section 1321(b)(2)(A) of this 
title, (B) any element, compound, mixture, solution, 
or substance designated pursuant to section 9602 of 
Title 42, (C) any hazardous waste having the charac
teristics identified under or listed pursuant to sec
tion 3001 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act f 42 
U.S.C.A. § 69211 (but not including any waste the 
regulation of which under the Solid Waste Disposal 
Act (42 U.S.C.A. § 6901 et seq.) has been suspend
ed by Act of Congress), (D) any toxic pollutant 
listed under seetion 1317(a) of this title, and (E) any 
imminently hazardous chemical substance or mix
ture with respect to which the Administrator has 
taken action pursuant to section 2606 of Title 15. 

( d) Civil penalties; factors considered in determin
ing amount 

Any person who violates section 1311, 1312, 1316, 
1317, 1318, 1328, or 1345 of this title, or any permit 
condition or limitation implementing any of such sec
tions in a permit issued under section 1342 of this title 
by the Administrator, or by a State, or in a permit 
issued under section 1344 of this title by a State, or 
any requirement imposed in a pretreatment program 
approved under section 1342(a)(3) or 1342(b)(8) of this 
title, and any person who violates any order issued by 
the Administrator under subseetion (a) of this section, 
shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed $25,000 
per day for each violation. In determining the 
amount of a civil penalty the court shall consider the 
seriousness of the violation or violations, the economic 
benefit (if any) resulting from the violation, any histo
ry of such violations, any good-faith efforts to comply 
with the applicable requirements, the economic impact 
of the penalty on the violator, and such other matters 
as justice may require. For purposes of this subsec
tion, a single operational upset which leads to simulta
neous violations of more than one pollutant parameter 
shall be treated as a single violation. 

(e) State liability for judgments and expenses 
Whenever a municipality is a party to a civil action 

brought by the United States under this section, the 
State in which such municipality is located shall be 
joined as a party. Such State shall be liable for 
payment of any judgment, or any expenses incurred 
as a result of complying with any judgment, entered 
against the municipality in such action to the extent 
that the laws of that State prevent the municipality 

from raising revenues needed to comply with such 
judgment. 

( f) Wrongful introduction of pollutants into treat
ment works 

Whenever. on the basis of any information available 
to him, the Administrator finds that an owner or 
operator of any source is introducing a pollutant into a 
treatment works in violation of subsection (d) of sec
tion 1317 of this title, the Administrator may notify 
the owner or operator of such treatment works and 
the State of such violation. If the owner or operator 
of the treatment works does not commence appropri
ate enforcement action within 30 days of the date of 
such notification, the Administrator may commence a 
civil action for appropriate relief. including but not 
limited to. a permanent or temporary injunction. 
against the owner or operator of such treatment 
works. In any such civil action the Administrator 
shall join the owner or operator of such source as a 
party to the action. Such action shall be brought in 
the district court of the United States in the district in 
which the treatment works is located. Such court 
shall have jurisdiction to restrain such violation and to 
require the owner or operator of the treatment works 
and the owner or operator of the source to take such 
action as may be necessary to come into compliance 
\vith this chapter. Notice of commencement of any 
such action shall be given to the State. Nothing in 
this subsection shall be construed to limit or prohibit 
any other authority the Administrator may have un
der this chapter. 

(g) Administrative penalties 
( 1) Violations 

Whenever on the basis of any information avail
able-

( A) the Administrator finds that any person 
has violated section 1311, 1312. 1316, 1317, 1318, 
1328, or 1345 of this title, or has violated any 
permit condition or limitation implementing any 
of such sections in a permit issued under section 
1342 of this title by the Administrator or by a 
State, or in a permit issued under section 1344 of 
this title by a State, or 

(B) the Secretary of the Army (hereinafter in 
this subsection referred to as the "Secretary") 
finds that any person has violated any permit 
condition or limitation in a permit issued under 
section 1344 of this title by the Secretary, 

the Administrator or Secretary, as the case may be, 
may, after consultation with the State in which the 
violation occurs, assess a class I civil penalty or a 
class II civil penalty under this subsection. 
(2) Classes of penalties 

(A) Class I 
The amount of a class I civil penalty under 

paragraph (1) may not exceed $10,000 per viola-
904 
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tion, except that the maximum amount of any 
class I civil penalty under this subparagraph shall 
not exceed $25,000. Before issuing an order as
sessing a civil penalty under this subparagraph, 
the Administrator or the Secretary, as the case 
may be, shall give to the person to be assessed 
such penalty written notice of the Administrator's 
or Secretary's proposal to issue such order and 
the opportunity to request, within 30 days of the 
date the notice is received by such person, a 
hearing on the proposed order. Such hearing 
shall not be subject to section 554 or 556 of Title 
5, but shall provide a reasonable opportunity to 
be heard and to present evidence. 

{8) Class II 

The amount of a class II civil penalty under 
paragraph (1) may not exceed $10,000 per day for 
each day during which the violation continues: 
except that the maximum amount of any class II 
civil penalty under this subparagraph shall not 
exceed $125,000. Except as otherwise provided 
in this subsection, a class II civil penalty shall be 
assessed and collected in the same manner, and 
subject to the same provisions, as in the case of 
civil penalties assessed and collected after notice 
and opportunity for a hearing on the record in 
accordance with section 554 of Title 5. The Ad
ministrator and the Secretary may issue rules for 
discovery procedures for hearings under this sub
paragraph. 

(3) Determining amount 
In determining the amount of any penalty as

sessed under this subsection, the Administrator or 
the Secretary, as the case may be, shall take into 
account the nature, circumstances, extent and gravi
ty of the violation, or violations, and, with respect to 
the violator, ability to pay, any prior history of such 
violations, the degree of culpability, economic bene
fit or savings (if any) resulting from the violation, 
and such other matters as justice may require. For 
purposes of this subsection, a single operational 
upset which leads to simultaneous violations of more 
than one pollutant parameter shall be treated as a 
single violation. 

(4) Rights of interested persons 
(A) Public notice 

Before issuing an order assessing a civil penal
ty under this subsection the Administrator or 
Secretary, as the case may be, shall provide 
public notice of and reasonable opportunity to 
comment on the proposed issuance of such order. 

(B) Presentation of evidence 
Any person who comments on a proposed as

sessment of a penalty under this subsection shall 
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be given notice of any hearing held under this 
subsection and of the order assessing such penal
ty. In any hearing held under this subsection. 
such person shall have a reasonable opportunity 
to be heard and to present evidence. 

(C) Rights of interested persons to a hearing 

If no hearing is held under paragraph (2) be
fore issuance of an order assessing a penalty 
under this subsection, any person who com
mented on the proposed assessment may petition. 
within 30 days after the issuance of such order. 
the Administrator or Secretary, as the case may 
be, to set aside such order and to provide a 
hearing on the penalty. If the evidence present
ed by the petitioner in support of the petition is 
material and was not considered in the issuance 
of the order. the Administrator or Secretary shall 
immediately set aside such order and provide a 
hearing in accordance with paragraph (2)(A) in 
the case of a class I civil penalty and paragraph 
(2)(8) in the case of a class II civil penalty. If 
the Administrator or Secretary denies a hearing 
under this subparagraph, the Administrator or 
Secretary shall provide to the petitioner. and 
publish in the Federal Register, notice of and the 
reasons for such denial. 

(5) Finality of order 
An order issued under this subsection shall be

come final 30 days after its issuance unless a peti
tion for judicial review is filed under paragraph (8) 
or a hearing is requested under paragraph (4)(C). 
If such a hearing is denied. such order shall become 
final 30 days after such denial. 

(6) Effect of order 

(A) Limitation on actions under other sections 

Action taken by the Administrator or the Sec
retary, as the case may be, under this subsection 
shall not affect or limit the Administrator's or 
Secretary's authority to enforce any provision of 
this chapter; except that any violation-

( i) with respect to which the Administrator 
or the Secretary has commenced and is dili
gently prosecuting an action under this subsec
tion, 

(ii) with respect to which a State has com
menced and is diligently prosecuting an action 
under a State law comparable to this subsec
tion, or 

(iii) for which the Administrator, the Secre
tary, or the State has issued a final order not 
subject to further judicial review and the viola
tor has paid a penalty assessed under this 
subsection, or such comparable State law, as 
the case may be, 
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shall not be the subject of a civil penalty action 
under subsection id) of this section or section 
1321(b) of this title or section 1365 of this title. 
(8) Applicability of limitation with respect to 

citizen suits 

The limitations contained in subparagraph (A) 
on civil penalty actions under section 1365 of this 
title shall not apply with respect to any violation 
for which-

(i) a civil action under section 1365{a)(l) of 
this title has been filed prior to commencement 
of an action under this subsection, or 

(ii) notice of an alleged violation of section 
1365(aJ(l) of this title has been given in accor
dance with section 1365/b)(l)(Al of this title 
prior to commencement of an action under this 
subsection and an action under section 
1365(a)(l) of this title with respect to such 
alleged violation is filed before the 120th day 
after the date on which such notice is given. 

(7) Effect of action on compliance 
No action by the Administrator or the Secretary 

under this subsection shall affect any person's obli
gation to comply with any section of this chapter or 
with the terms and conditions of any permit issued 
pursuant to section 1342 or 1344 of this title. 

Administrator's or Secretary's assessment of the 
penalty constitutes an abuse of discretion. 
(9) Collection 

If any person fails to pay an assessment of a civil 
penalty-

(A) after the order making the assessment has 
become final, or 

( B) after a court in an action brought under 
paragraph (8) has entered a final judgment in 
favor of the Administrator or the Secretary, as 
the case may be, 

the Administrator or the Secretary shall request the 
Attornev General to bring a civil action in an appro
priate d·istrict court to recover the amount assessed 
<plus interest at currently prevailing rates from the 
date of the final order or the date of the final 
judgment. as the case may be). In such an action. 
the validity, amount. and appropriateness of such 
penalty shall not be subject to review. Any person 
who fails to pay on a timely basis the amount of an 
assessment of a civil penalty as described in the 
first sentence of this paragraph shall be required to 
pay, in addition to such amount and interest. attor
neys fees and costs for collection proceedings and a 
quarterly nonpayment penalty for each quarter dur
ing which such failure to pay persists. Such non
payment penalty shall be in an amount equal to 20 
percent of the aggregate amount of such person's 
penalties and nonpayment penalties which are un-

(8) Judicial review paid as of the beginning of such quarter. 
Any person against whom a civil penalty is as- ( 10) Subpoenas 

sessed under this subsection or who commented on The Administrator or Secretary, as the case may 
the proposed assessment of such penalty in accor- be, may issue subpoenas for the attendance and 
dance with paragraph (4) may obtain review of such testimony of witnesses and the production of rele-
assessment- vant papers, books, or documents in connection with 

(A) in the case of assessment of a class I civil hearings under this subsection. In case of contu-
penalty, in the United States District Court for macy or refusal to obey a subpoena issued pursuant 
the District of Columbia or in the district in which to this paragraph and served upon any person. the 
the violation is alleged to have occurred. or district court of the United States for any district in 

(B) in the case of assessment of a class II civil which such person is found, resides, or transacts 
penalty, in United States Court of Appeals for the business, upon application by the United States and 
District of Columbia Circuit or for any other after notice to such person, shall have jurisdiction to 
circuit in which such person resides or transacts issue an order requiring such person to appear and 
business, give testimony before the administrative law judge 

by filing a notice of appeal in such court within the or to appear and produce documents before the 
30-<lay period beginning on the date the civil penal- administrative law judge, or both, and any failure to 
ty order is issued and by simultaneously sending a obey such order of the court may be punished by 
copy of such notice by certified mail to the Adminis- such court as a contempt thereof. 

trator or the Secretary, as the case may be, and the {11) Protection of existing procedures 
Attorney General. The Administrator or the Secre- Nothing in this subsection shall change the proce-
tary shall promptly file in such court a certified <lures existing on the day before February 4, 1987. 
copy of the record on which the order was issued. under other subsections of this section for issuance 
Such court shall not set aside or remand such order and enforcement of orders by the Administrator. 
unless there is not substantial evidence in the rec- (June 30, 1948, c. 758, Title III, § 309, as added Oct. 18, 1972, 
ord. taken as a whole, to support the finding of a Pub.L. 92-500, § 2, 86 Stat. 859, and amended Dec. 27. 1977, 
violation or unless the Administrator's or Secre- Pub.L. 95-217, §§ 54(b), 55, 56, 67(c)(2), 91 Stat. 1591, 1592. 
tary's assessment of the penalty constitutes an 1606; Feb. 4, 1987, Pub.L. 100--4, Title III, §§ 312, 313(a)(l), 
abuse of discretion and shall not impose additional (b)(l), (c), 314(a), 101 Stat. 42, 45, 46; Aug. 1.8, 1990, Pub.L. 
civil penalties for the same violation unless the 101-380, Title IV, § 430l(c), 104 Stat. 637.) 
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6472: · Pub.L. 103--.'3.2:2, 1994 U.S, Code Con~ .nd Adm. 
News, p. 1801. 

§ . 3566. . Implemenution.of a aen~nc• of proba-
tion ··· · 

. . . . . . . 
The implementation of , sen~nce of probation is 

governed by the provisions o_f_subchapter A of chapter 
229. ' ' . 
(Added Pub.L. 9S--473, Title II, § 212(a)(2); Oct. 12, 1984, 98 
Stat.. 1995.) 

. ' - ·,: ·:· 

~RlCAL AND. STATUTORY. NO'J,'ES 
Effective Data 

Sed:ion -- ef:!QC:tfvc on the first day o! first< calendar month 
beginning thirty-aix months. after Oct. 12,. 1984. applicable 
only to of!enses committed after uking e!!eet of 8ection.s 211 
to 2811 of Pub.L. 98-473, .ind except .. \ otherwiae provided for 
thccn, aee section · 235 af Puo:L. 98-473; aa· amended, set 
out aa a nota IUldu section 8651 of this title. 

Lqialatin Hlitoiy 
. For l•gimtive lilittory lllld J)urp<>t'oe of Pub.L. 9~73, 5" 

1984 U:S.Co:iaConi. and Ad.m.N~.p. 3182.. · 

SUBCHAPI'ER C-FINES 

Sec.'· ' 
3.:>""71. · Sen~~ o! !me. . 
3672.. Impoaition of a SQil~ncc of fine and related m.i.tten. 

. 3573 • . Petition;of the Guvernment for modification or rem.iii-
. lion. . . 

3574.. im-plemenution ofa sentence of fina. 

§ 3571. Sentence of fine · 
(a) In general.-A defendant who has been found 

guilty · ot. :an offense may be sente.nce<Lt.o pay • fine. 
(b) Fines for individual1.-Except ·as provided .in 

substict,ion (el of this section, an inwvidm.l who : has 
bffn !ound guilty of an ofrenae may be fined not more 
than the greatest of-

(1) the ,mount specified in the law setting forth 
the offeruse; 

(2) · the applicable amount wider subsection ( d) of 
this section; · · · 

(3) for a felony, not more than $260,000; 

<•> Jor a misdemeanor resulting in. death, not 
more than $250,000; 

( 5) !or a Claaa A ~meanor· that · does · not 
· result in d~ not_ more than $100,000; · 

(g) for a Clasa B or C misdemeanor that dOGS not 
result in death, not. more than $6,000; or 

(7) for an infnction, not more ~ $5,000; 

(c) Fine. for- organizations.-E.xctpt :i,s. provided 
in subsection (e) ot this section, an organization that 
hu been found guilty of an offense may- be fined not 
more than :the great.eat 0£-... · · 

.. ·c n the amount spedfi.ed cin the law setting forth 
the ·otrense: · !· • · 

(2) the 'applicable amount under subs~tiori (d) of, 
this section; · · · · , . . · • .· :--· · ' > · 

(3) fo~ a ·felony~.not more thari $500,000; · ... . 
(4) for •·a misdemeanor r:eault.ing· in :.death, not 

more Uwt $500,000; . ,--,i .. 

. ;(o) for a Class A mi&demeanor that does not 
result in death; not more than $200,000; . • . 

(6) for a-CW.S B or C misdemeanor that does not 
re1ult in death; not more than·i10,000;. and •· 

m for an rntraction, not more than $1'0;000. 
(d) Alternative• .fine based' on· gail(' ·rir fosa.-If 

any person derives pecuzi,ia;ryg~ from th~·offen.se. or 
i! the offense results in · pecuniary loss to_ a pe,rson 
other than the defendant, the defendant may_ be fined 
n~f.:more titan the gre,ter o! twice the gro.ss :gain or 
twice the gross 1088; unless imposition of a fine_,~der 
this subsection would unduly compliate or prolong 
the sentencing process.. · 

(e) Special rule for ·lower-fine specified: in· sub
stantive provi•ion.-If a law. setting fort.h 0 an· offense 
specifies · no fine • or a tine that is : lower than the' • fine 
otherwise applicable· under'thJ.s•· iiecuon and sutjl law, 
by specific ·reference, exempts 'the offense· from the 
applicability of the f~,o.t.herwise applicable und.er this 
section, ,the defen(bnt may- .not be fined more.~ the 
amount specified in ,the _Law· setting forth the offense. 
(Added Pub~ 98-t73, ..Dt.le -ll. § 2l2(a)(2), Oct.• 12, 1984, 98 
Stat. 1996, 3lld amended Pub..L. 100-185, § o; Dee. ll, 1987, 
l 01 Stat. 1280.) . 

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES: 
Eff~Date 

S«tion etra.:iiv~ oii: the 5"t day of ~t Ollendu month 
~ ~-six montha:mer Oct. 12, 1~ .11.ppliQble 
only to off,n..~ committed' aftar t.alcing effect af sectiorll! 211 
to 239 of Pub.L. 98-473; and eiu:ept u otherwise provided !or 
thmwi, see section l!:35 of PUb.L. 98-473, &!I a.me.oded, i.-et 
out u a no~ under aection 8551 of this title. 

LqielatiTe History ' 
· For- legalatiVe hiatory and purpoee of Pul>'.L; ~73, aee 
lW. U.S. Coda Cong, and Adm.•NC1199, p; 3182. . 

For legisbtiVe history and purpoee a! Pub.L. 100-:-185, see 
1987 U.S. Code Cone. and Adm; Newa, pi 2187. , · · 
. . . . . ' . ' -~- ·. 
§' 3572. lmpoeition ,of a· sentence· of fine • and 

nlatad matters 
(a) · Fiu.-tors to . . be · con1idued.~ln- determining 

whether to impose· a fine; and the· -it.mount, time for 
pa.yment, ,nd method-of paymcnt ·.of a fine, the court 
s~ consider, in· addition t.o the factors set · forth · in 
section 3553(a)- : 

(U the defendanr11 income; earnink capacity,. and 
financial ruources; 

-C~ w ...,,._...-llde19U~;c;A. 
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(2) the burtlen that r.he fine VI.ill impose upon the 
defendant., any person who is financially dependent 
on the defendant. or any other person lincluding a 
government) that would be responsible for the wel
fare of any person financially dependent on the 
defendant, relative to the burden that alternative 
punishments would impose; 

(3) any pecuniary loss inflicted upon others as a 
result of the offense; 

(4) whether restitution is ordered or made and 
the amount of such restitution; 

(5) the need to deprive the defendant of illegally 
obtained gabls irom the offense; 

(6) the expected costs to the government of any 
imprisonment, supervi~ed release, or probation com

. ponent of the sentence; 

(7) whether the defend1111t can pa.ss on to con
sumers or other penons the expense of the fme; 
and 

(8) if the defendant is an organization, the size of 
the organ.ir.ation ;md any measure taken by the 
organization to discipline any officer, director. em
ployee, or agent of the organiution responsible for 
the offense and to pnivent a recurrence of such an 
offense. 

(b) Fine not to impair ability to make restitu
tion.-If, as a result of a conviction, the defendant h~ 
the obligation to make restitution to a victim of the 
offense, other than the United States, the court shall 
impose a fine or other monetary penalty only to the 
extent that such fine or penalty will not impair the 
ability of the defendant to make restitution. 

(c) Effect of fmaJity of judgtne.nt.-Notwith
standing the fact that a sentence to pay a fine can 
subsequenUy be-

( l) modified or remitted under ~ction 3573; 

(2) corrected under rule 35 of the Federal Rules 
o! Criminal Procedure and section 3742; or 

(3) appealed and modified under section 3742; 

a judgment ~t includes such a sentence is a final 
judgmwt for ill other purposes. 

(d) Time. method of PllYJnent. and related 
iteme.--(1) A pel'$0n sentenced to pay a fine or other 
monetary penalty, including restitution, shall make 
such payment immediately, unless, in the interest of 
justice, the court provide:, for payment on a date 
certain or in insta.llmenta. U the court provides for 
payment in i?utallmenta, the installmwta shall be in 
equal monthly payments over the J)Qriod provided by 
the court. unl11sa the court establishes another sched
ule. 

(2) If the judgment, or, in the case of a restitution 
order, the order, permits other than immediate pay-

ment, the length o! time over which scheduled pay
ments v,ill be made shall be set by the CQurt, but shall 
be the shortest time in which full payment can reason
ably be made. 

(3) A judgment for a fine which permits payments 
in installments shall include a requirement that the 
defendant will notify the court of any material change 
in the defendant's ~nomic circumstances that might 
affect the defendant'3 ability to pay the tine. Upon 
receipt of such notice the court may, on its O\\"?l motion 
or the motion of any party, adjust the payment sched
ule, or require immediate payment in full, as the 
interests of justice require. 

(e) Alternative sentence precluded.-At the time 
a defendant is sentenced to pay a fine, the court l?l.'.lY 
not impose an alternative sentence to be carried out if 
the fine is not paid. 

(f) Responsibility for p:.yrnent of monetary obli
gation relating to organization.-It a sentence in
cludes a fine, special a._,<;essment, restitution, or other 
monetary obligation (including interest) with respect 
to an organization, each incfr,ddual nuthorized to make 
disbllrllementa for the organization has a duty to pay 
the obligation ft'om assets of the orgaruzation. If such 
an obligation is imposed on a director. officer, share
holder, employee, or agent of an organization, pay
ments may not be made, directly or indirectly, from 
assets of the organization, unless the court finds that 
such payment is expressly permissible under applica
ble St:tte law. 

(g) Security !or st:syed fine.-If a sentence impos
ing a fine is stayed, the court shall, ab3ent e.~ceptional 
circumstan<:i!s (as determined by the court}-

(1) require the defendant to deposit, in the regis
try of the district court, any amount of the fine that 
is due; 

(2) require the defendant to provide a bond or 
other :iecurity to ensure payment of the fine; or 

(3) restrain the defendant from transfemng or 
di3sipating as.set.,. 
(h) Delinquenc:y.-A fine or payment of n!stitution 

is delinquent if a payment is more than 30 days late. 
(i) Default.-A fine or payment of restitution is in 

default if a payment is delinquent for more than 90 
days. Notwithstanding any irutallment schedule, 
when a fine or payment of restitution is in default.. the 
entire amount of the fine or ret:titution is due within 
30 days after notification of the default, subject to the 
provisionB of section 3613A. 

((j) lkdesignat.d (i) J 
(Added Pub.L. 98-473, Title II, § 212(a)(2}, Oct. 12, 1984, 98 
St.iit. 1995, and amended Pub.L. ll»-186, § 7, Dec. 11, 1987, 
101 Stat.. 1280; Pub.L. 101-o47, Titie XXXV, § 3687, Nov. 29, 
1990, 104 St.at. 4930; Pub.L. l~Z2. Title II, § 204-08(a), 
SepL 13, .1994, 108 Stat. 18'25; l'ub.L. 104-132, Tille II, 
§ 207Cb), Apr. 24, 1996. llO Stat.. 1236.J 

Complete Anrwnatlon Maten.la, ... Tlfle 19 U..S.C.A. 
0 
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ministrative recommendations, shall be made available to the 
public for comment not later than 42 months after the date of 
enactment of the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 [Nov. 
15, 1990) and shall be submitted to the President and to the 
Congress not later than 48 months after such date of enact
ment. In  the report, the Commission shall make recommen
dations with respect to the appropriate use of risk assess
ment and risk management in Federal regulatory programs 
to prevent cancer or other chronic health effects which may 
result from exposure to hazardous substances. The Commis
sion shall cease to exist upon the date determined by the 
Commission, but not later than 9 months after the submis
sion of such report.

“ (gl A uthorization.—There are authorized to be approp
riated such sums as are necessary to carry out the activities 
of the Commission established by this section.”

§ 7413. Federal enforcement

[CAA § 113]
fa) In  general

(1) O rder to  comply with SIP
Whenever, on the basis of any information avail

able to the Administrator, the Administrator finds 
that any person has violated or is in violation of any 
requirement or prohibition of an applicable imple
mentation plan or permit, the Administrator shall 
notify the person and the State in which the plan 
applies of such finding. At any time after the 
expiration of 30 days following the date on which 
such notice of a violation is issued, the Administra
tor may, without regard to the period of violation 
(subject to section 2462 of Title 28)—

(A) issue an order requiring such person to 
comply with the requirements or prohibitions of 
such plan or permit,

(B) issue an administrative penalty order in 
accordance with subsection (d) of this section, or

(C) bring a civil action in accordance with sub
section (b) of this section.

(2) S tate  failure to  enforce SIP  or perm it pro
gram

Whenever, on the basis of information available to 
the Administrator, the Administrator finds that vio
lations of an applicable implementation plan or an 
approved permit program under subchapter V of 
this chapter are so widespread that such violations 
appear to result from a failure of the State in which 
the plan or permit program applies to enforce the 
plan or permit program effectively, the Administra
tor shall so notify the State. In the case of a permit 
program, the notice shall be made in accordance 
with subchapter V of this chapter. If the Adminis
trator finds such failure extends beyond the 30th 
day after such notice (90 days in the case of such 
permit program), the Administrator shall give pub
lic notice of such finding. During the period begin
ning with such public notice and ending when such 
State satisfies the Administrator that it will enforce

such plan or permit program (hereafter referred to 
in this section as “period of federally assumed en
forcement”). the Administrator may enforce anv 
requirement or prohibition of such plan or permit 
program with respect to any person by—

(A) issuing an order requiring such person to 
comply with such requirement or prohibition,

(B) issuing an administrative penalty order in 
accordance with subsection (d) of this section, or

(C) bringing a civil action in accordance with 
subsection (b) of this section.

(3) EPA  enforcement of o ther requirem ents 
Except for a requirement or prohibition enforce

able under the preceding provisions of this subsec
tion, whenever, on the basis of any information 
available to the Administrator, the Administrator 
finds that any person has violated, or is in violation 
of, any other requirement or prohibition of this 
subchapter, section 7603 of this title, subchapter 
IV-A. subchapter V, or subchapter VI of this chap
ter. including,, but not limited to. a requirement or 
prohibition of any rule, plan, order, waiver, or per
mit promulgated, issued, or approved under those 
provisions or subchapters, or for the payment of 
any fee owed to the United States under this chap
ter (other than subchapter II of this chapter), the 
Administrator may—

(A) issue an administrative penalty order in 
accordance with subsection (d) of this section.

(B) issue an order requiring such person to 
comply with such requirement or prohibition.

(C) bring a civil action in accordance with sub
section (b) of this section or section 7605 of this 
title, or

(D) request the Attorney General to commence 
a criminal action in accordance with subsection (c) 
of this section.

(4) Requirements for orders
An order issued under this subsection (other than 

an order relating to a violation of section 7412 of 
this title) shall not take effect until the person to 
whom it is issued has had an opportunity to confer 
with the Administrator concerning the alleged viola
tion. A copy of any order issued under this subsec
tion shall be sent to the State air pollution control 
agency of any State in u'hich the violation occurs. 
Any order issued under this subsection shall state 
with reasonable specificity the nature of the viola- 

•i and specify a time for compliance which the
r.Jnunistrator determines is reasonable, taking into
account the seriousness of the violation and any 
good faith efforts to comply with applicable require
ments, In any case in which an order under this 
subsection (or notice to a violator under paragraph
(1)) is issued to a corporation, a copy of such order 
(or notice) shall be issued to appropriate corporate 
officers. An order issued under this subsection

• 

• 

• 
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ministrative recommendations, .shall be made available to the 
public for comment not later than 42 months after the date of 
enactment of the Clean Afr Act Amendments of 1990 [Nov. 
15, 19901 and shall be submitted to the President and to the 
Congress not later than 48 months after such date of enact
ment. 1n the report. .the Commission shall make recommen
dations with respect to the ;:ppropriate use of risk .assess
ment and risk management in federal regulatory programs 
to prevent cancer or other chronic health effects which may 
result from exposure to. haz~rcious substances. The Commis
sion shall cease to exist upon the date determined by the 
Commission, but not later than !I months after the submis
sion of such report. 

"(gJ Authorization.-There are authorized to be approp
riated such sums as are necessary to carry out the activities 
of the Commission established by this section." 

§ 7413. Federal enforcement 

[CAA§ 113] 
(a) In general 

( 1) Order to comply with SIP 
Whenever, on the basis of any information avail

able to the Administrator, the Administrator finds 
that any person has violated or is in violation of any 
requirement or prohibition of an applicable imple
mentation plan or permit, the Administrator shall 
notify the person and the State in which the plan 
applies of such finding. At any time after the 
expir.1.tion of 30 days following the date on which 
such notice of a violation is issued. the Administra
tor may, ...,ithout regard to the period of violation 
(subject to section 2462 of Title 28)-

(A) issue an order requiring such person to 
comply y,ith the requirements or prohibitions of 
such plan or permit, 

CB) issue an admi.,istrative penalty order in 
accordance with subsection (dl of this section, or 

CC) bring a civil action in accordance with sub
section (bl of this section. 

(2) State failure to enforce SIP or. permit pro
gram 

Whenever, on the basis of information available to 
the Administrator, the Administrator- finds that vio
lations of an applicable implementation plan or an 
ai;proved permit program under subchapter V of 
thls chapter are so widespread that such violations 
appear to result from a failure of the State in which 
the plan or permit program applies to enforce the 
plan or permit program effectively, the Administra
tor shall so notify the State. In the case of a permit 
program, the .notice shall be made in accordance 
with subchapter V of this .chapter. [f the Adminis
trat.or finds such failure extends beyond the 30th 
day after such notice (!!O days in the case of such 
,ennit program), the Administrator shall give pub
lic notice of such finding. During the period begin
ning with such public notice and ending when such 
State satisfies the Administrator that it will enforce 

~ 

such plan or permit program lherea.(tet refetted to 
in this section as ''period of federally assumed en
forcement"), the Administrator may enforce anv 
requirement or prohibition of such plan or pennit 
program with respect to any person by-

( A) issuing an order requiring such person to 
comply with such requirement or prohibition, 

(8) issuing an administrative penalty order in 
accordance \\1th subsection (d) of this section, or 

CC) bringing a civil action in accordance with 
subsection (b) of this section. 

(3) EPA enforcement of other r.equirements 
Except for a requirement or prohibition enforce

able under the precedi;,g provisions of this subsec
tion. whenever. on the basis of anv information 
available to the Administrator. the Administrator 
finds that any person has violated, nr is in violation 
of, any other requirement or prohibition of this 
subchapter, section 7603 of this title. subchapter 
lV-A. subchapter V, .ot :::ubchapter VI of this chap
ter. including,. but not .limited to. a requirement or 
prohibition of any rule. plan, order. waiver, or per
mit promulgated, issued. or approved under those 
provisions or subchapters, or for the payment of 
any fee owed to the United States under this chap
ter (other than subchapter II of this chapter), the 
Administrator may-

(Al issue an administrative penalty order in 
accordance \\ith subsection .(d) of this section . 

C8) issue an order requiring such person to 
comply ,,ith such requirement or prohibition. 

(C) bring a chi! action in accfJrdance ·,,ith sub
section (bl of this section or section 1605 of thE 
title, or 

CD) request the Attorney Gener-J.! to commence 
a criminal action in accordance ,,;th subsection (cl 
of this section. 

c-t> Requirements for orders 
An order issued under this subsection (other than 

an order relating to a violation of section 7412 of 
this title) shall not take effect until. the person to 
whom it is issued has had an opportunity to confer 
,,;th the Admfaistrator concerning the alleged \iola
tion. A copy of any order issued under this subsec
tion shall be sent to the State air poll~tion control 
agency of any State in which the violation occurs. 
Any order issued under this subsection shall state 
with reasonable specificity the nature of the viola. •., ,t and ~pecify a time for compliance which . the 
.. ~~mlnistrato.- ::!srermines is reasonable, taking into 
account the seriousness of the violation and any 
good faith efforts to comply with applicable reqWl: 
ments. In any case in which an order under this 
subsection (or notice to a violator under plll'3.graph 
(1)) is issued to a corporation, a copy of such order 
(or notice) shall be issued to appropriate, corporate 
officers. An order issued under tlus subsection 
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shall require the person to whom it was issued to 
comply with the requirement as expeditiously as 
practicable, but in no event longer than one year 
after the date the order was issued, and shall be 
nonrenewable. No order issued under this subsec
tion shall prevent the State or the Administrator 
from assessing any penalties nor otherwise affect or 
limit the State's or the United States authority to 
enforce under other provisions of this chapter. nor 
affect any person's obligations to comply with any 
section of this chapter or with a term or condition of 
any permit or applicable implementation plan pro
mulgated or approved under this chapter. 

(5) Failure to comply with new source require
ments 

Whenever, on the basis of any available informa
tion, the Administrator finds that a State is not 
acting in compliance with any requirement or prohi
bition of the chapter relating to the construction of 
new sources or the modification of existing sources. 
the Administrator may-

ter, or for the payment of any fee owed the United 
States under this chapter (other than subchapter II 
of this chapter). 

(3) Whenever such person attempts to construct 
or modify a major stationary source in any area 
with respect to which a finding under subsection 
(a)(5) of this section has been made. 

Any action under this subsection may be brought in 
the district court of the United States for the district 
in which the violation is alleged to have occurred. or is 
occurring, or in which the defendant resides. or where 
the defendant's principal place of business is located. 
and such court shall have jurisdiction to restrain such 
violation, to require compliance, to assess such civil 
penalty. to collect any fees owed the United States 
under this chapter (other than subchapter II of this 
chapter) and any noncompliance assessment and non
payment penalty owed under section 7420 of this title. 
and to award any other appropriate relief. Notice of 
the commencement of such action shall be given to the 
appropriate State air pollution control agency. In the 
case of any action brought by the Administrator under 
this subsection. the court may award costs of litigation 
(including reasonable attorney and ~xpert v.itness 
fees) to the party or parties against whom such action 
was brought if the court finds that such action was 
unreasonable. 

( A) issue an order prohibiting the construction 
or modification of any major stationary source in 
any area to which such requirement applies; 1 

(8) issue an administrative penalty order in 
accordance with subsection (d) of this section. or 

(C) bring a civil action under subsection (b) of 
this section. 

(c) Criminal penalties 
Nothing in this subsection shall preclude the United 
States from commencing a criminal action under < ll Any person who knowingly violates any require
subsection (c) of this section at any time for any ment or prohibition of an applicable implementation 
such violation. plan (during any period of federally assumed enforce-

(b) Civil judicial enforcement ment or more than 30 days after having been notified 
under subsection ( a)(l) of this section by the Adminis-

The Administrator shall. as appropriate. in the case trator that such person is violating such requirement 
of any person that is the owner or operator of an or prohibition), any order under subsection (al of this 
affected source. a major emitting facility, or a major section. requirement or prohibition of section 741 l(e) 
stationary source. and may, in the case of any other of this title (relating to new source performance stan
person, commence a civil action for a permanent or dards). section 7412 of this title; section 7414 of this 
temporary injunction. or to assess and recover a civil title (relating to inspections. etc.), section 7429 of this 
penalty of not more than $25,000 per day for each title (relating to solid waste combustion), section 
violation. or both. in any of the following instances: 7475(a) of this title (relating to preconstruction re-

(1) Whenever such person has violated. or is in quirements), an order under section 7477 of this title 
violation of, any requirement or prohibition of an (relating to preconstruction requirements), an order 
applicable implementation plan or permit. Such an under section 7603 of this title (relating to emergency 
action shall be commenced (A) during any period of orders), section 7661a(a) or 7661b(c) of this title (relat
federally assumed enforcement, or (8) more than 30 ing to permits), or any requirement or prohibition of 
days following the date of the Administrator's notifi- subchapter IV-A of this chapter (relating to acid 
cation under subsection (a)(l) of this section that deposition control), or subchapter V1 of this chapter 
such person has violated, or is in violation of, such (relating to stratospheric ozone control), including a 
requirement or prohibition. requirement of any rule, order, waiver, or permit 

(2) Whenever such person has violated, or is in promulgated or approved under such sections or sub
violation of, any other requirement or prohibition of chapters, and including any requirement for the pay
this subchapter, section 7603 of this title, subchap- ment of any fee owed the United States under this 
ter IV-A, subchapter V, or subchapter VI of this chapter (other than subchapter II of this chapter) 
chapter, including, but not limited to, a requirement shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine pursuant 
or prohibition of any rule, order. waiver or permit to Title 18, or by imprisonment for not to exceed 5 
promulgated, issued, or approved under this chap- years,. or both. If a conviction of any person ~der 
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this paragraph is for a violation committed after a 
first conviction of such person under this paragraph. 
the maximum punishment shall be doubled with re
spect to both the fine and imprisonment. 

(2) Any person who knowingly-

( A) makes any false material statement. repre
sentation. or certification in, or omits material infor
mation from, or knowingly alters, conceals. or fails 
to file or maintain any notice, application. record. 
report, plan, or other document required pursuant 
to this chapter to be either filed or maintained 
(whether with respect to the requirements imposed 
by the Administrator or by a State); 

( 8) fails to notify or report as required under 
this chapter: or 

(C) falsifies. tampers with. renders inaccurate. or 
fails to install any monitoring device or method 
required to be maintained or followed under this 
chapter 2 

shall, upon conviction. be punished by a fine pursuant 
to Title 18. or hy imprisonment for not more than 2 
years, or both. If a conviction of any person under 
this paragraph is for a violation committed after a 
first conviction of such person under this paragraph. 
the maximum punishment shall be doubled v.ith re
~pect to both the fine and imprisonment. 

(3) Any person who knowingly fails to pay any fee 
owed the United States under this subchapter, sub
chapter III. IV-A, V, or VI of this chapter shall. upon 
conviction, be punished by a fine pursuant to Title 18, 
or by imprisonment for not more than 1 year, or both. 
If a conviction of any person under this paragraph is 
for a violation committed after a first conviction of 
such person under this paragraph, the maximum pun
ishment shall be doubled with respect to both the fine 
and imprisonment. 

death or serious bodily injury shall. upon conviction. 
be punished by a fine under Title 18. or by imprison
ment of not more than 15 years, or both. Any person 
committing such violation which is an organization 
shall, upon conviction under this paragraph. be subject 
to a fine of not more than $1.000,000 for each violation. 
If a conviction of any person under this paragraph is 
for a violation committed after a first conviction of 
such person under this paragraph, the maximum pun
ishment shall be doubled with respect to both the fine 
and imprisonment. For any air pollutant for which 
the Administrator has set an emissions standard or 
for any source for which a permit has been issued 
under subchapter V of this chapter. a release of such 
pollutant in accordance with that standard or pennit 
shall not constitute a \iolation of this paragraph or 
paragraph (4). 

( 8) In rletermining whether a defendant \\·ho is an 
individual knew that the violation placed another per
son in imminent danger of death or se1ious bodily 
injury-

( i) the defendant is responsible only for actual 
awareness or actual belief possessed; and 

( ii) knowledge possessed by a person other than 
the defendant. but not by the defendant. may not be 
attributed to the defendant; 

except that in proving a defendant's possession of 
actual knowledge, circumstantial evidence may be 
used. including evidence that the defendant took affir. 
mative steps to be shielded from relevant information. 

( C) It is an affirmative defense to a prosecution 
that the conduct charged was freely consented to by 
the person endangered and that the rlan~er and con
duct charged were reasonably foreseeable hazards 
of-

( i) an occupation. a business. or a profession: or 
(4) Any person who negligently releases into the (ii) medical treatment or medical or scientific 

ambient air any hazardous air pollutant listed pursu- experimentation conducted by professionally ap-
ant to section i412 of this title or any extremely proved methods and such other person had been 
hazardous substance listed pursuant to section 
11002(a)(2) of this title that is not listed in section 7412 made aware of the risks involved prior to giving 

consent. 
of this title, and who at the time negligently places 
another person in imminent danger of death or serious The defendant may establish an affirmative defense 
bodily injury shall, upon conviction, be punished by a under this subparagraph by a preponderance of the 
fine under Title 18, or by imprisonment for not more evidence. 
than 1 year, or both. If a conviction of any person (D) All general defenses, affirmative defenses. and 
under this paragraph is for a violation committed after bars to prosecution that may apply with respect to 
a first conviction of such person under this paragraph, other Federal criminal offenses may apply under sub
the maximum punishment shall be doubled with re- paragraph (A) of this paragraph and shall be deter· 
spect to both the fine and imprisonment. mined by the courts of the United States according to 

(5)(A) Any person who knowingly releases into the the principles of common law as they may be inter-
ambient air any hazardous air pollutant listed pursu- preted in the light of reason and experience. Con· 
ant to section 7412 of this title or any extremely cepts of justification and excuse applicable under this 
hazardous substance listed pursuant to section section may be developed in the light of reason and 
11002(a)(2) of this title that is not listed in section 7412 experience. 
of this title, and who knows at the time that he (E) The term "organization" means a legal entity, 
thereby p:iaces another person in imminent danger of other than a government, established or organized for 
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PRETREATMENT PENALITIES 

Sheyenne Tooling and Manufacturing Co., Cooperstown , ND 

EPA calculated penalty $436,000 
Collected $ 60, 150 

R.O. Banks Tool & Manufacturing Co., Wahpeton, ND 

EPA Calculated Penalty $105,000 
Collected $ 28,000 

Rugby Manufacturing, Rugby, ND 

EPA Collected 

Newman Signs, Jamestown, ND 

$ 40,000 

EPA Calculated Penalty $ 25,000 
Collected Environmental Bill Board Program 

Lucus Western, Jamestown, ND 

EPA Calculated Penalty $2 million 
Collected $243,000 

Melroe Ingersoll-Rand - Information not available 
In excess of $200,000 

Proposed Actions: 

City of Gwinner 
City of Mandan 
City of Jamestown 
City of West Fargo/Federal Beef 
Dakota Catalyst, Williston, ND 
William Lang Jewel Bearing Plant, Rolla, ND 



• TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF SENATE BILL NO. 2178 
BY 

FRANCIS SCHWINDT 
CHIEF OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SECTION 

NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
701.328.5150 

The North Dakota Department of Health requested Senate Bill 2178 to update 

penalty provisions under North Dakota's air pollution (N.D.C.C. ch. 23-25) and water 

pollution (N.D.C.C. ch. 61-28) laws. These updates are necessary to satisfy federal 

requirements for state assumption and retention of delegated federal programs under 

the Federal Clean Air Act and Water Pollution Control Act. The proposed amendments 

relate only to the penalty sections of North Dakota's air and water pollution laws. I will 

give you a very brief history of these laws, and then give you a brief summary of the 

reasons for the proposed changes and why they are necessary. 

The Federal Clean Air Act is the principal source of statutory authority for 

controlling air pollution. North Dakota's air pollution statutes, rules, and standards 

follow the federal statutes and regulations. Originally enacted in 1963, the Clean Air 

Act was amended in 1970, 19TT and 1990. The 1970 amendments established the 

basic program for controlling air pollution that remains in effect today. 

North Dakota's Air Pollution Control Act was originally enacted in 1969, with 

major changes be_in~ade to that law in 1975 to allow the state to take primacy of 

federal programs d-~ to the states under the 1970 amendments to the Clean Air 
' ~ 

Act. Primacy simply means that the state takes authority and responsibility for 

programs under the Clean Air Act, and is given federal funding to run those programs, 

provided the state adopts, through statutes and rules, the requirements for 

implementing and enforcing the program. Attached to my testimony is a list of the air 

programs that the Department of Health has primacy for under the Clean Air Act. 

The penalty provisions of North Dakota's air pollution law were last amended in 

1975. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has asked the Department to make 

changes to this law in order for the Department to take primacy for the Title V operating 

• permit program. This is the new air permitting program that was established under the 



1990 Amendments to the Clean Air Act for large air pollution sources such as power 

plants, oil refineries, etc. These changes will also allow the Department to retain 

primacy under its other air pollution programs as those programs periodically come up 

for review under the Clean Air Act. Section 23-25-1 0 is patterned after the penalty 

provisions in the Clean Air Act at 42 USCA § 7 413, a copy of which is attached to this 

testimony. 

The Federal Water Pollution Control Act was first enacted in 1956 and in 1965 

was strengthened to require states to adopt water quality standards for interstate 

waters. In 1972 additional major changes to" this Act were enacted by Congress, which 

is now generally called the Clean Water Act. North Dakota first adopted its Water 

Pollution Control Act in 1967 as chapter 61-28 of the North Dakota Century Code. The 

last changes to the penalty provisions of North Dakota's Water Pollution Control Act 

were made in 1973. There have been many significant changes to the Federal Clean 

Water Act since then. The EPA has requested the Department to make several 

changes to the penalty provision of North Dakota's water pollution law, N.D.C.C. § 61-

28-08, in order for the Department to take primacy under § 307 of the Clean Water Act 

for the National Pretreatment Program. This program regulates industries that 

discharge their wastewater to municipal treatment systems for further treatment. These 

changes will also allow the Department to retain primacy of the other programs the 

Department has under the Clean Water Act as they periodically come up for review. 

N.D.C.C. § 61-28-08 is patterned after the penalty provisions of the Clean Water Act at 

33 USCA § 1319, a copy of which is attached to this testimony. 

Let me briefly go over the specific proposed changes with you. Section 1 of the 

bill addresses the revisions to the air pollution law and section 2 of the bill addresses 

the revisions to the water pollution law. 

In section 1 of the bill, the following revisions were made: 

Existing subsection 1 has been deleted as it is outdated. The administrative 

hearing process is spelled out in N.D.C.C. ch. 28-32 and the Department handles any 

legal action through an assistant attorney general assigned to the Department. The 

present language also makes it difficult to use the injunctive relief remedy. 

Existing subsection 2 has been rewritten to make it clear the penalty for a willful 

2 
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violation applies to rules, orders or other applicable requirements as well as the 

chapter, any permit condition or limitation and that the fine is per day per violation. The 

phrase, "in the county jail" has been eliminated as the place of imprisonment to give 

more flexibility to the courts. The maximum penalty amount for the initial violation has 

been reduced from $25,000 to $10,000, the minimum required by federal law. Existing 

subsection 2 is now subsection 1. 

At EPA's request, a new subsection 2 has been added to provide a penalty for 

violations that involve criminal negligence. Criminal negligence does not include 

ordinary negligence of the type covered in most civil lawsuits. Rather, criminal 

negligence requires a gross deviation from acceptable standards of conduct under 

conditions where there are substantial risks to other persons or property. The 

definition of criminal negligence from North Dakota law is incorporated into this bill. 

That law (N.D.C.C. § 12.1-02-02(1 )(d}) defines criminal negligence as follows: 

1. For the purposes of this title, a person engages in conduct: 

d. "Negligently" if he engages in the conduct in unreasonable 

disregard of a substantial likelihood of the existence of the relevant 

facts or risks, such disregard involving a gross deviation from 

acceptable standards of conduct. 

Existing subsection 3 has been revised to add "any permit condition, rule, order, 

limitation, or other applicable requirement implementing this chapter" to be complete. 

The words "per day per violation" were added to satisfy EPA requirements. "In the 

county jail" was also deleted in this subsection. 

Existing subsection 4 was revised to allow the Department to fine persons for 

each violation that occurs on separate days, and to add "rule, order, ... or other 

applicable requirement" as required by EPA. 

A new subsection 5 was added to provide clear provisions for injunctive relief for 

actual or threatened violations of any permit condition, rule, order, limitation or other 

applicable requirement implementing this chapter. The EPA has asked the Department 

to make clear in its laws that the Department can enjoin threatened violations of the law 

and to clarify our injunctive authority . 

3 



The revisions to the penalty section of the state water pollution law, N.D.C.C. § 

61-28-08, are the same as for the state air pollution law, except the water pollution law 

did not contain the outdated subsection 1 that is in the air pollution law, and subsection 

5 was amended to provide clear provisions for injunctive relief as requested by EPA. 

Finally, because of the "per day per violation" clarification, which will allow the 

Department to assess the required penalty for each violation that occurs on each day, 

the Department has dropped the penalty provisions down to the minimum cash 

penalties allowed for delegation of primacy under the law for first violations. The 

proposed changes retain North Dakota's more severe penalties for subsequent criminal 

violations, although as you will see by comparing those with the federal criminal 

statutes attached to this testimony, the state criminal penalties are still significantly less 

than the federal criminal penalties. All of our enforcement activities to date have been 

civil penalties but we believe the criminal penalties must be strong to deter willful 

crimes and violations. 

In conclusion, the Department requests that Senate Bill No. 2178 be passed to 

allow the Department to receive final approval and delegation of the Title V Operating 

Permit Program and the National Pretreatment Program and protect previous 

delegations. 

This concludes the Department's testimony in support of Senate Bill No. 2178 

and I will be happy to answer any questions you may have. Assistant Attorney 

General Lyle Witham, the Department's attorney, is here to answer any specific 

questions you may have concerning these changes. 
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AIR POLLUTION PROGRAMS DELEGATED BY EPA 

• New Source Review/Prevention of Significant Deterioration of Air Quality 

• New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) 

• National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) 

• (MACT) National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source 
Categories 

• Title V Operating Permit Program 

• Visibility Protection Program 

• Stack Height Program 

• Acid Rain 

WATER QUALITY PROGRAMS DELEGATED BY EPA 

• (NPDES) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

• (UIC) Underground Injection Control 



Proviaion 

Civil Penalty 
Section 1. 
Subsection 4. 

Criminal Penalty 
(willful) 

Section 1. 
Subsection 1. 

False Statements 
(knowingly) 

Section 1. 
Subsection 3. 

• 

COlll'Alll:8011 or PDaLTY PllOVJ:SJ:0118 
STATS VDSUS nDll■IL 

Air Pollution Control IIDCC 23-25-10 
Section 1. of 8B 2171 

kiatilag State Law Propoaed State Law Federal Law 

Not to exceed S10.000 per Not to exceed $10,000 per Not more than $25,000 per 
day of such violation. day per violation. day for each violation. 

Not more than $2~.000 per Not more than S!0,000 per Not more than $50,000 per 
day of violation, first day per violation, first day per violation, first 
violation. violation. violation . 

Not more than $50,000 per Not more than $20,000 per Not more than $500,000 per 
day of violation, second day per violation, second day per violation, second 
violation. violation. violation. 

Imprisonment in the county Imprisonment for not more Imprisonment for not more 
jail for not more than Qwt than~ year, first than fiye years . 
year, first violation; ~ violation; two years, 
years, second violation. second violation. 

Not more than SlQ,OQQ. Not more than SlQ,QQQ per Not more than $250,QQO per 
day per violation. day per violation. 

Imprisonment in the county 
jail for not more than w Imprisonment for not more Imprisonment for not more 
months. than ili months. than~ years . 

lliniaua Federal 
Monetary Penalty 
llequireaent for State 
Law 

Maximum amount not 
less than $10,000 per 
day per violation . 

Maximum amount not 
less than $10,000 per 
day per violation . 

Maximum amount not 
less than $10,000 per 
day per violation . 

• 



Proviaion 

Injunctions 
Section 1. 
Subsection 2· 

Exiating State Law 

If after the completion of 
the administrative hearing 
process, the department 
determines that a 
violation of this chapter, 
or any rule, regulations, 
or order of the department 
issued under this chapter, 
has occurred, it shall 
make all of its evidence 
and findings available to 
the attorney general for 
use in any remedial action 
his office determines to 
be appropriate, including 
an action for injunctive 
relief. 

Nothing in this chapter 
shall be construed to deny 
use of the remedy of 
injunctive relief where it 
is deemed appropriate . 

Propoaed State Law 

Without prior revocation 
of any pertinent permits, 
the department, in 
accordance with the laws 
of this state governing 
injunction or other 
process, may maintain an 
action in the name of the 
state against any person 
to enjoin any threatened 
or continuing violation 
of any provision of this 
chapter or any permit 
condition, rule, order, 
limitation, or other 
applicable requirement 
implementing this 
chapter. 
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Federal Law 

Not withstanding any other 
provisions of this Act, the 
Administrator upon receipt 
of evidence that a 
pollution source or 
combination of sources 
(including moving sources) 
is presenting an imminent 
and substantial 
endangerment to public 
health or welfare or the 
environment, may bring suit 
on behalf of the United 
States in the appropriate 
United States district 
court to immediately 
restrain any person causing 
or contributing to the 
alleged pollution to stop 
the emission of air 
pollutants causing or 
contributing to such 
pollution or to take such 
other action as may be 
necessary. If it is not 
practicable to assure 
prompt protection of public 
health or welfare or the 
environment by commencement 
of such a civil action, the 
Administrator may issue 
such orders as may be 
necessary to protect public 
health or welfare or the 
environment. 

Niniaum Federal 
Monetary Penalty 
Requir-nt for State 
Law 

To restrain or enjoin 
immediately and 
effectively any p e rson 
by order or by suit in 
court from engaging in 
any activity in 
violation of a permit 
that is presenting an 
imminent and 
substantial 
endangerment to the 
public health or 
welfare, or the 
environment. 

To seek injunctive 
relief in court to 
enjoin any violation 
of any program 
requirement, including 
permit conditions, 
without the necessity 
of a prior revocation 
of the permit. 



Proviaion 

Civil Penalty 
Section 2. 
Subsection ,i. 

Criminal Penalty 
(willful) 

Section 2. 
Subsection 1. 

False Statements 
(knowingly) 

Section 2. 
Subsection 1-

• COlll'AIUSOII or PDIALTY PllOVJ:SJ:0118 
STATS VDSUS nDD•L 

Water Pollution Control IIDCC 61-28-08 
Section 2. of n 2178 

kiati.Dg State Law Propoaed State Law Federal Law 

Not to exceed $10,000 per Not to exceed SS,000 per Not more than $25,000 per 
day of such violation. day per violation. day for each violation. 

Not more than $25,000 per Not more than $10,000 9er Not less than $5,000 nor 
day of violation, first day per violation, first more than $50 1 000 per day 
violation. violation. for each violation. 

Not more than $50,000 per Not more than $20,000 per Imprisonment for not more 
day of violation, second day per violation, second than three years. 
violation. violation. 

Imprisonment in the county Imprisonment for not more 
jail for not more than one than .QD.!! year, first 
year, first violation; ~ violation; ,UtQ years 
years, second violation. second violation. 

Not more than uo,ooo. Not more than SS,000 per Not less than $5 1 000 nor 
day per violation. more than $50,000 per day 

Imprisonment in the county for each violation. 
jail for not more than ili Imprisonment for not more 
months. than W months. Imprisonment for not more 

than three years. 

Pane 1 

• 
lliniaua Federal 
llonetary Penalty 
Requireaent for State 
Law 

In at least the amount 
of SS,000 per day for 
each violation. 

In at least the amount 
of $10,000 a day for 
each violation . 

In at least the amount 
of $5,000 for each 
instance of violation. 



Proviaion 

Injunctions 
Section 2 
Subsection 2· 

&xiating State Law 

The department may, in 
accordance with the laws 
of this state governing 
injunctions or other 
process, maintain an 
action in the name of the 
state against any person 
violating any provision of 
this chapter, or any rule, 
regulation or order issued 
thereunder. 

Propoaed State Law 

Without prior revocation 
of any pertinent permits, 
the department may, in 
accordance with the laws 
of this state governing 
injunction or other 
process, maintain an 
action in the name of the 
state against any person 
to enjoin any threatened 
or continuing violation 
of any provision of this 
chapter or any permit 
condition, rule, order, 
limitation, or other 
applicable requirement 
implementing this 
chapter. 

Page 2 

Federal Law 

Whenever on the basis of 
any information available 
to him the Administrator 
finds that any person is in 
violation of .... of this 
title, or is in violation 
of any permit condition or 
limitation implementing any 
of such sections in a 
permit issued under section 
1342 of this title by him 
or by a State or in a 
permit issued under section 
1344 of this title by a 
State, he shall issue an 
order requiring such person 
to comply with such section 
or requirement, or he shall 
bring a civil action in 
accordance with subsection 
(bl of this section. 

The Administrator is 
authorized to commence a 
civil action for 
appropriate relief, 
including a permanent or 
temporary injunction, for 
any violation for which he 
is authorized to issue a 
compliance order under 
subsection (a) of this 
section. Any action under 
this subsection may be 
brought in the district 
court of the United States 
for the district in which 
the defendant is located or 
resides or is doing 
business, and such court 
shall have jurisdiction to 
restrain such violation and 
to require compliance. 

Niniaum Federal 
llonetary Penalty 
Reciuir-nt for State 
Law 

To restrain 
immediately and 
effectively any person 
by order or by suit in 
state court from 
engaging in any 
activity which is 
endangering or causing 
damage to public 
health or the 
environment. 

To sue in courts of 
competent jurisdic tion 
to enjoin any 
threatened or 
continuing violation 
of any program 
requirement, including 
permit conditions, 
without the necessity 
of a prior revocation 
of the permit . 




